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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Cohen and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
 
FROM: Lindy Coe-Juell, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
DATE: May 5, 2009 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the City Manager to enter into a five-year lease agreement with Vera 

Janischova for operation of a food concession on the Manhattan Beach Pier 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a five-year lease 
agreement with Vera Janischova to operate a food concession in the Manhattan Beach Pier 
Roundhouse. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
Under the terms of the proposal supplied by Ms. Janischova, which will be incorporated as a part of 
the agreement, she will submit a monthly payment to the City in the amount of $600 or 8% from 
gross receipts, whichever is greater.  This represents an increased amount over the current payment 
of $500 per month.  Based on a review of past gross receipts and the pro-forma analysis submitted 
by Ms. Janiscova, staff believes that the proposed payment is realistic and fair. 
 
Per the operating agreement for Pier between the City and the State of California, the revenue has 
been and shall be deposited in the State Pier and Parking Lots Fund.  This fund is restricted and is 
only used to maintain and operate the Pier and adjacent parking lot areas. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City assumed operational control of the Manhattan Beach Pier in 1988.  Terms in the 
agreement between the City and the State provide that the City may grant concessions on the 
property consistent with use by the general public.  In May 1998, the City Council awarded a five-
year agreement to Mahmoud Saad for the operation of the food concession in the Roundhouse.  
The next 5-year agreement for the food concession was issued in February 2004 to Rock Fish, 
LLC.   
 
Early in 2005, the owners of Rock-N-Fish gave full operational duties for the Pier Café to Vera 
Janischova.  Ms. Janischova has been running the café since that time.  The current agreement with 
Rock Fish, LLC. expired in February 2009.   
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DISCUSSION: 
Staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Pier food concession that opened on March 12, 
2009 and closed on April 3, 2009.  The RFP was advertised with a ¼ page ad in the Beach Reporter 
and was placed on the City’s website.  We received three proposals in response to the RFP.  The 
Assistant to the City Manager and the Finance Director reviewed and evaluated the proposals based 
on 1) the vendors experience and capability, 2) the proposed rent to the City and 3) the proposed 
concept and approach. 
 
Based on these criteria including her proven operational capability, staff is recommending the 
proposal submitted by Vera Janischova.  Ms. Janischova’s proposal is attached to this report 
(personal information submitted, such as bank account information, has been removed).  The other 
proposals are available for review in the Office of the City Clerk.   
 
The concept and approach in Ms. Janischova’s proposal is one that has been working well and that 
we believe is particularly well-suited for the location of this food concession.  Her menu offers a 
variety of outdoor friendly foods with healthy options such as veggie burgers and turkey dogs, fun 
foods such as pizza and cotton candy, and drinks including coffee, teas and ice blended smoothies.  
This variety has been popular with tourists and regular local visitors as well.  Ms. Janischova also 
offers several sundry beach items such as sunglasses, flip-flops, hats and t-shirts, which have sold 
well in this location. 
 
Ms. Janischova has a proven record of successful operation of the Pier café.  She has consistently 
received an “A” grade from the Health Department.  During the contract prior to Rock Fish LLC., 
the City found that the café operator was not open consistently and staff received some complaints 
regarding the operation.  Ms. Janischova has provided a consistent operation and staff has received 
no complaints regarding her business. 
 
One of the other proposals submitted did offer to pay a higher amount of monthly rent to the City.  
However, staff believes that the approach offered by Ms. Janischova’s proposal is preferable for the 
Pier location and that her proven capability for running the café is valuable. 
 
CONCLUSION (Optional): 
After reviewing the proposals submitted, staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City 
Manager to sign the lease agreement with Vera Janischova for operation of a food concession in the 
Manhattan Beach Pier Roundhouse. 
 
Attachments: A. Vera Janischova’s Proposal  
  B. RFP Sample Pier Concession Agreement 
   
 
cc: Bruce Moe, Finance Director 
 Jim Arndt, Public Works Director 
 Vera Janischova 




























































